

1 21 NCAC 46 .2001 is amended **with changes** as published in 34:18 NCR 1723 as follows:

2
3 **21 NCAC 46 .2001 FILING AND SERVICE RIGHT TO HEARING**

4 (a) Parties shall file all papers provided for in this Section with the Board, either before service or within five days
5 after service. The Board shall consider a paper to be filed when the Board actually receives it. Parties shall direct
6 filings to the Investigations and Inspections Coordinator, North Carolina Board of Pharmacy, 6105 Farrington Road,
7 Suite 201, Chapel Hill, North Carolina 27517.

8 (b) In addition to filing all papers with the Board, the Board and other parties shall serve all papers as follows:

9 (1) The Board shall serve a notice of hearing under Rule .2006 of this Section on all parties by any
10 method for service of process permitted by G.S. 150B-38(c).

11 (2) Parties shall serve subpoenas under Rule .2013 of this Section by any method for service permitted
12 by G.S. 150B-39(c). **[In investigation or preparation for, or in the conduct of,] While investigating,**
13 **preparing for, or during** a contested case, among others who are authorized to serve subpoenas,
14 Board staff may serve subpoenas on behalf of the Board, pursuant to G.S. 1A-1, Rule 45.

15 (3) Parties shall serve all other papers in the contested case on all **[parties (including] parties, including**
16 counsel to **the Board, [Board]** by any method for service permitted by G.S. 1A-1, Rule 5.

17 (4) The Board shall serve all its orders by any method for service permitted by G.S. 150B-42(a).

18 ~~(a) When the Board acts or proposes to act, other than in rulemaking or declaratory ruling proceedings, in a manner~~
19 ~~which will affect the rights, duties, or privileges of a specific, identifiable person, such person has the right to an~~
20 ~~administrative hearing. When the Board proposes to act in such a manner, it shall give such person notice of the right~~
21 ~~to a hearing by mailing by certified mail to that person at the last known address of that person a notice of the proposed~~
22 ~~action and a notice of a right to a hearing.~~

23 ~~(b) Prior to issuing the notice called for in Paragraph (a) of this Rule, and with the consent of the party or parties, the~~
24 ~~Board may attempt to settle disputes through the informal procedures set out in Rule .2008(a) of this Section.~~

25
26 *History Note:* *Authority G.S. 90-85.6; 90-85.38; ~~150B-11~~; ~~150B-22~~; ~~150B-38~~; ~~150B-39~~; ~~150B-40~~; ~~150B-41~~;*
27 *150B-42;*
28 *Eff. April 1, 1983;*
29 *Amended Eff. October 1, 1990; May 1, 1989; July 1, 1988; March 1, 1987;*
30 *Pursuant to G.S. 150B-21.3A, rule is necessary without substantive public interest Eff. October 3,*
31 *2017; ~~2017~~.*
32 *Amended Eff. August 1, 2020.*

1 21 NCAC 46 .2004 is amended with changes as published in 34:18 NCR 1723 as follows:

2
3 **21 NCAC 46 .2004 REQUEST FOR HEARING**

4 (a) ~~Any time an individual [If a] A person aggrieved by believes that a Board administrative action [has substantially~~
5 ~~affected that] individual's [person's] rights, duties, or privileges have been affected substantially by the Board's~~
6 ~~administrative action, but [that person] who has not received a notice of a right to an administrative hearing, that~~
7 ~~individual [person] hearing from the Board~~ may file a formal request for a hearing.

8 (b) ~~Before an individual may file a request, that individual is encouraged to exhaust all reasonable efforts to resolve~~
9 ~~the issue informally with the Board.~~

10 (c) ~~Subsequent to such informal action, if still dissatisfied, the individual may submit a request to the Board's office,~~
11 ~~with the request bearing the notation: REQUEST FOR ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING. The request for hearing shall~~
12 ~~contain the following information:~~

13 (1) ~~the petitioner's name and address; address of the petitioner;~~

14 (2) ~~a concise short and plain statement of the Board action that the petitioner challenges; taken by the~~
15 ~~Board which is challenged;~~

16 (3) ~~a concise short and plain statement of the way in which the petitioner has been aggrieved; and~~

17 (4) ~~a clear and specific an explicit statement of request for a hearing.~~

18 (d) ~~A (c) In order to preserve a person's rights with respect to a Board action, the person shall file a request for~~
19 ~~administrative hearing must be submitted to with the Board Board's office within 60 days after the person receives of~~
20 ~~receipt of notice of the Board action taken by the Board that the person challenges, which is challenged. The request~~
21 ~~will be acknowledged promptly and, if deemed appropriate by the Board in accordance with 21 NCAC 46 .2005, a~~
22 ~~hearing shall be scheduled.~~

23
24 *History Note: Authority G.S. 90-85.6; 150B-38;*

25 *Eff. September 1, 1988;*

26 *Amended Eff. August 1, 2002;*

27 *Pursuant to G.S. 150B-21.3A, rule is necessary without substantive public interest Eff. October 3,*
28 *2017; 2017.*

29 *Amended Eff. August 1, 2020.*

1 21 NCAC 46 .2005 is amended as published in 34:18 NCR 1723 **with changes** as follows:

2
3 **21 NCAC 46 .2005 GRANTING OR DENYING HEARING REQUEST**

4 (a) The Board **will shall** grant a request for a hearing if it determines that the ~~party requesting the hearing~~ petitioner
5 is a "person aggrieved" within the meaning of G.S. 150B-2(6). ~~The Board **will shall** provide notice of the time and~~
6 ~~place for the hearing. If the party fails to appear, the Board may deny the party's request for failure to prosecute it or~~
7 ~~may proceed to hear the matter in the party's absence.~~

8 (b) ~~If the Board determines the petitioner is not a person aggrieved, the Board shall issue a denial that shall constitute~~
9 ~~a final agency decision. The denial of request for a hearing will be issued immediately upon decision, and in no case~~
10 ~~later than 60 days after the submission of the request. Such denial shall contain a statement of the reasons leading the~~
11 ~~Board to deny the request.~~

12 (c) ~~Approval of a request for a hearing will be signified by the issuing of a notice as required by G.S. 150B-38(b) and~~
13 ~~explained in Rule .2006 of this Section.~~

14
15 *History Note: Authority G.S. 90-85.6; ~~150B-11; 150B-38; 150B-40; 150B-42;~~*

16 *Eff. July 1, 1988;*

17 *Pursuant to G.S. 150B-21.3A, rule is necessary without substantive public interest Eff. October 3,*
18 *~~2017; 2017.~~*

19 *Amended Eff. August 1, 2020.*

1 21 NCAC 46 .2006 is amended **with changes** as published in 34:18 NCR 1723 as follows:

2
3 **21 NCAC 46 .2006 NOTICE OF HEARING**

4 (a) Before imposing final discipline under G.S. 90-85.38 on a person who holds a license, registration, permit, or
5 other privilege issued by the Board, the Board shall file and serve a notice of hearing pursuant to G.S. 150B-38(b).
6 The Board shall give the party or parties in a contested case a notice of hearing not less than 15 days before the hearing.
7 Said notice shall contain the following information, in addition to the items specified in G.S. 150B-38(b):

- 8 (1) ~~the name, position, address and telephone number of a person at the offices of the Board to contact~~
9 ~~for further information or discussion;~~
10 (2) ~~the date, time, and place for a pre-hearing conference, if any; and~~
11 (3) ~~any other information deemed relevant to informing the parties as to the procedure of the hearing.~~

12 (b) A party who has been served with a notice of hearing may file and **serve** mail to all other parties a written
13 response not less than 10 days before the date set for the hearing. If the party wishes to submit this written response
14 instead of personally appearing at the hearing, the party **should note** shall state that desire in the written response,
15 and the Board **will** shall consider the written response in lieu of a personal appearance.

16 (c) If a party who has been served with a notice of hearing neither appears pursuant to the notice nor files and serves
17 a written response as set out in Paragraph (b) of this Rule, the Board shall rule the party to be in default and the
18 allegations of the notice **admitted**. ~~to be admitted, and the~~ The Board may enter a final agency decision by default
19 granting any relief available to the Board.

20 (d) If the Board determines that the public health, **safety safety**, or welfare requires such action, it may ~~issue an order~~
21 summarily ~~suspend~~ suspending a license, registration, permit, or other privilege granted by the Board, ~~license or~~
22 ~~permit~~. Upon service of the order, the ~~licensee~~ licensee, registrant, or permit holder to whom the order is directed shall
23 immediately ~~cease the practice of~~ stop practicing pharmacy or ~~cease the dispensing of~~ and stop dispensing devices
24 and medical equipment in North Carolina. ~~Failure to receive the order shall not invalidate the order. The Board shall~~
25 promptly give notice of hearing pursuant to G.S. 150B-38 following service of the order. The suspension shall remain
26 in effect pending issuance by the Board of a final agency decision pursuant to G.S. 150B-42. However, pursuant to
27 Rules .2004 and .2005 of this Section, a person subject to a summary suspension may request a hearing on whether
28 the public health, **safety safety**, or welfare permits terminating or modifying the terms of the summary suspension
29 pending a final agency decision. Neither an order of summary suspension nor a decision on whether the summary
30 suspension order shall be terminated or modified is a final agency decision.

31
32 *History Note: Authority G.S. 90-85.6; 90-85.12; 90-85.38; 150B-3; ~~150B-3(e); 150B-11; 150B-38; 150B-40;~~*
33 *150B-42;*
34 *Eff. July 1, 1988;*
35 *Amended Eff. September 1, 1995; May 1, 1989;*
36 *Pursuant to G.S. 150B-21.3A, rule is necessary without substantive public interest Eff. October 3,*
37 *2017; 2017.*

1 21 NCAC 46 .2007 is amended **with changes** as published in 34:18 NCR 1723 as follows:

2
3 **21 NCAC 46 .2007 WHO SHALL HEAR CONTESTED CASES**

4 (a) ~~All administrative hearings shall be conducted by the Board, a panel consisting of a~~ A majority of the Board shall
5 conduct all hearings, as set forth in G.S. 150B-40(b), except as provided in the members of the Board, or an
6 administrative law judge designated to hear the case pursuant to G.S. 150B-40(e).

7 (b) The Board President shall be the presiding officer at any hearing, unless the President is disqualified, **absent**
8 **absent**, or otherwise determines that he or she is unable to serve in that capacity. In the event that the President does
9 not preside, the Board Vice President shall be the presiding officer at any hearing, unless the Vice President is
10 disqualified, **absent**-**absent**, or otherwise determines that he or she is unable to serve in that capacity. In the event
11 that neither the President nor the Vice President preside, the Board shall designate another presiding officer. The
12 presiding officer shall have all duties and powers set forth in G.S. 150B-40(c). Matters involving device and medical
13 equipment permit holders shall be initially heard by a device and medical equipment subcommittee. The subcommittee
14 shall be elected pursuant to Section .2100 of this Chapter. Prior to issuing a notice of hearing, the subcommittee and
15 the party or parties may agree to follow the informal procedures set out in Rule .2008 of this Section.

16 (c) ~~After hearing the matter, the device and medical equipment subcommittee shall propose a recommended decision~~
17 ~~to the Board. Sanctions shall be consistent with G.S. 90-85.38. If the Board accepts the recommended decision, it shall~~
18 ~~constitute a final agency decision for the right to judicial review. If the Board rejects the recommended decision, the~~
19 ~~Board may propose an alternative decision or schedule the matter for a formal hearing before the Board.~~

20
21 *History Note: Authority G.S. 90-85.6; 90-85.12; ~~150B-11~~; 150B-38; 150B-40;*
22 *Eff. July 1, 1988;*
23 *Amended Eff. September 1, 1995;*
24 *Pursuant to G.S. 150B-21.3A, rule is necessary without substantive public interest Eff. October 3,*
25 *2017; ~~2017~~.*
26 *Amended Eff. August 1, 2020.*

1 21 NCAC 46 .2011 is amended with changes as published in 34:18 NCR 1723 as follows:

2
3 **21 NCAC 46 .2011 DISQUALIFICATION OF BOARD MEMBERS**

4 (a) ~~Self disqualification.~~ If ~~for any reason~~ a Board member determines that personal bias or other reason for that
5 Board member's disqualification exists in factors renders that Board member unable to hear a contested case, ease and
6 perform all duties in an impartial manner, that Board member shall ~~voluntarily~~ decline to participate in the hearing or
7 decision.

8 (b) ~~Petition for disqualification.~~ If ~~for any reason~~ any party in a contested ~~ease believes~~ case, in good faith, has
9 evidence that a Board member is personally biased or another reason for disqualification exists, ~~otherwise unable to~~
10 ~~hear a contested case and perform all duties in an impartial manner,~~ the party may file and serve a motion for
11 disqualification, which must be supported by a sworn, notarized affidavit testifying to the facts relevant to
12 disqualification, with the Board. The title of such affidavit should bear the notation: AFFIDAVIT OF
13 DISQUALIFICATION OF BOARD MEMBER IN THE CASE OF (Name of case).

14 (c) Ex parte communication by or on behalf of a party with a Board member about the facts of a case at any time
15 during either the investigation or prosecution of potential violations shall be grounds for disqualification of that Board
16 member, other than communications by Board counsel and staff during the course of seeking a summary suspension
17 or communications during any other proceeding before the Board. Before a hearing [begins (or) begins, or during the
18 hearing, if applicable, [applicable], both the Board member and the party must disclose the communications between
19 the Board member and a party about the facts of the case to the Board and to the parties.

20 (e) (d) Contents of affidavit. The affidavit must state all facts the party deems to be relevant to the disqualification of
21 the Board member.

22 (d) Timeliness of affidavit.

23 (1) ~~An affidavit of disqualification will be considered timely if filed ten days before commencement of~~
24 ~~the hearing. Any other affidavit will be considered timely provided it is filed at the first opportunity~~
25 ~~after the party becomes aware of facts which give rise to a reasonable belief that a Board member~~
26 ~~may be disqualified under this Rule.~~

27 (2) ~~Where an affidavit for disqualification is filed~~ A party may file and serve a motion for
28 disqualification less than then ten days before or during the course of a hearing hearing, only when
29 based on newly discovered evidence that by due diligence could not have been discovered in time
30 to file a timely motion. Under these circumstances, the hearing shall continue with the challenged
31 Board member sitting. Petitioner shall have the opportunity to present evidence supporting the
32 petition, and the petition and any evidence relative thereto presented at the hearing shall be made a
33 part of the record.

34 [(d)] (c) The Board Board, before rendering its decision, shall decide whether the evidence requires justifies
35 disqualification. disqualification before it renders the final agency decision in the contested case. The decision about
36 the disqualification of a Board member [will] shall be made by the other Board members. The Board is not required
37 to grant a new hearing if a Board member is disqualified during the course of a hearing.

1 ~~[(e)]~~ (f) The presiding officer may determine the method of resolving the motion for disqualification in the presiding
2 officer's discretion under G.S. 150B-40. This may include the authority to direct that the Board's Executive Director
3 oversee an investigation of the allegations and report the findings to the Board.

4 ~~[(f)]~~ (g) In the event of disqualification, the disqualified member ~~will~~ shall not participate in further deliberation or
5 decision of the case.

6 (e) Procedure for determining disqualification.

7 (1) The Board will appoint a Board member to investigate the allegations of the affidavit.

8 (2) The investigator will report findings to the Board and make recommendations.

9 (3) The Board shall decide whether to disqualify the challenged individual.

10 (4) The person whose disqualification is to be determined will not participate in the decision case but
11 may be called ~~on~~ upon to furnish information to the other members of the Board.

12 (5) When a Board member is disqualified prior to the commencement of the hearing or after the hearing
13 has begun, such hearing will continue with the remaining members sitting provided that the
14 remaining members still constitute a majority of the Board.

15 ~~(6)~~ ~~[(g)]~~ (h) If three or more members of the Board are disqualified pursuant to this Rule, the Board shall petition the
16 Office of Administrative Hearings to appoint an administrative law judge to hear the contested case pursuant to G.S.
17 150B-40(e).

18
19 *History Note: Authority G.S. 90-85.6; ~~150B-11~~; 150B-38; 150B-39; 150B-40; 150B-41;*

20 *Eff. July 1, 1988;*

21 *Amended Eff. May 1, 1989;*

22 *Pursuant to G.S. 150B-21.3A, rule is necessary without substantive public interest Eff. October 3,*
23 *2017; ~~2017~~.*

24 *Amended Eff. August 1, 2020.*

1 21 NCAC 46. 2013 is amended as published in 34:18 NCR 1723 with changes as follows:

2
3 **21 NCAC 46 .2013 SUBPOENAS**

4 (a) A party shall file and serve a request for a subpoena, attaching a proposed subpoena. A form of subpoena is
5 available on the Board's website at ncbop.org/lawandrules.htm. The Board may issue the subpoena in accordance with
6 G.S. 150B-39(c). Subpoenas must be issued and signed by the Presiding Officer, the Board's Executive Director, the
7 Board's legal ~~counsel~~ counsel, or a Board staff member designated by the Executive Director.

8 (b) The party shall serve the subpoena along with the fees and expenses required by G.S. 150B-39(c).

9 (c) After service of the subpoena, the party serving the subpoena shall file and serve sworn proof of the method of
10 service, demonstrating compliance with G.S. 150B-39(c).

11 (d) G.S. 150B-39(c) governs the recipients' duties in responding to subpoenas. A party to the case or person subject
12 to the subpoena may object to a subpoena by filing a motion to quash. The movant shall file and serve the motion to
13 quash within 10 days of service of the subpoena or seven days before the contested case hearing, whichever is sooner.
14 The Board shall hear and rule on objections as provided in G.S. 150B-39(c).

15 ~~(a) Requests for subpoenas for the attendance and testimony of witnesses or for the production of documents, either~~
16 ~~at a hearing or for the purposes of discovery, shall be made in writing to the Board and shall identify any document~~
17 ~~sought with specificity, and shall include the full name and home or business address of all persons to be subpoenaed~~
18 ~~and, if known, the date, time, and place for responding to the subpoena. The Board shall issue the requested subpoenas~~
19 ~~within three days of receipt of the request.~~

20 ~~(b) Subpoenas shall contain: the caption of the case; the name and address of the person subpoenaed; the date, hour~~
21 ~~and location of the hearing in which the witness is commanded to appear; a particularized description of the books,~~
22 ~~papers, records or objects the witness is directed to bring with him to the hearing, if any; the identity of the party on~~
23 ~~whose application the subpoena was issued; the date of issue; the signature of one of the members of the Board or the~~
24 ~~Board's executive director; and a "return of service." The "return of service" form as filled out, shows the name and~~
25 ~~capacity of the person serving the subpoena, the date on which the subpoena was delivered to the person directed to~~
26 ~~make service, the date on which service was made, the person on whom service was made, the manner in which service~~
27 ~~was made, and the signature of the person making service.~~

28 ~~(c) Subpoenas shall be served by the sheriff of the county in which the person subpoenaed resides, when the party~~
29 ~~requesting such subpoena prepays the sheriff's service fee. The subpoena shall be issued in duplicate, with a "return~~
30 ~~of service" form attached to each copy. A person serving the subpoena shall fill out the "return of service" form for~~
31 ~~each copy and properly return one copy of the subpoena, with the attached "return of service" form completed, to the~~
32 ~~Board.~~

33 ~~(d) Except as otherwise stated in a particular subpoena, any person receiving a subpoena from the Board may object~~
34 ~~thereto by filing a written objection to the subpoena with the Board's office.~~

35 ~~(e) Such objection shall include a concise, but complete, statement of reasons why the subpoena should be revoked~~
36 ~~or modified. These reasons may include lack of relevancy of the evidence sought, or any other reason sufficient in law~~

1 ~~for holding the subpoena invalid, such as that the evidence is privileged, that appearance or production would be so~~
2 ~~disruptive as to be unreasonable in light of the significance of the evidence sought, or other undue hardship.~~

3 ~~(f) Any such objection to a subpoena must be served on the party who requested the subpoena simultaneously with~~
4 ~~the filing of the objection with the Board.~~

5 ~~(g) The party who requested the subpoena, in such time as may be granted by the Board, may file a written response~~
6 ~~to the objection. The written response shall be served by the requesting party on the objecting witness simultaneously~~
7 ~~with filing the response with the Board.~~

8 ~~(h) After receipt of the objection and response thereto, if any, the Board shall issue a notice to the party who requested~~
9 ~~the subpoena and the party challenging the subpoena, and may notify any other party or parties of an open hearing, to~~
10 ~~be scheduled as soon as practicable, at which time evidence and testimony may be presented, limited to the narrow~~
11 ~~questions raised by the objection and response.~~

12 ~~(i) Promptly after the close of such hearing, a majority of the Board members with voting authority, or an~~
13 ~~administrative law judge assigned to the case pursuant to G.S. 150B-40(c), will rule on the challenge and issue a~~
14 ~~written decision. A copy of the decision will be issued to all parties and made a part of the record.~~

15
16 *History Note: Authority G.S. 90-85.6; ~~150B-11~~; 150B-38; 150B-39; 150B-40;*

17 *Eff. September 1, 1988;*

18 *Pursuant to G.S. 150B-21.3A, rule is necessary without substantive public interest Eff. October 3,*
19 *2017; 2017.*

20 *Amended Eff. August 1, 2020.*

1 21 NCAC 46 .2015 is amended **with changes** as published in 34:18 NCR 1723 as follows:

2

3 **21 NCAC 46 .2015 FINAL DECISION**

4 In a contested case, the Board shall issue a final agency decision in compliance with G.S. 150B-42. All final agency
5 decisions shall be drafted by Board staff or Board counsel and presented to the presiding officer. In the event that the
6 presiding officer determines that the drafted order does not reflect the Board's findings of fact, conclusions of **law**
7 **law**, or ruling, the presiding officer shall revise the drafted order to reflect the Board's decision. In all cases heard by
8 the Board, the Board will issue its decision within 60 days after its next regularly scheduled meeting following the
9 close of the hearing. This decision will be the prerequisite "final agency decision" for the right to judicial review.

10

11 *History Note: Authority G.S. 90-85.6; 90-85.38; 150B-3; ~~150B-11~~; 150B-38; 150B-40; 150B-41; 150B-42;*

12 *Eff. July 1, 1988;*

13 *Amended Eff. May 1, 1989;*

14 *Pursuant to G.S. 150B-21.3A, rule is necessary without substantive public interest Eff. October 3,*
15 *2017; 2017.*

16 *Amended Eff. August 1, 2020.*

1 21 NCAC 46 .2016 is amended **with changes** as published in 34:18 NCR 1723 as follows:

2
3 **21 NCAC 46 .2016 PROPOSALS FOR DECISIONS**

4 (a) When an administrative law judge conducts a hearing pursuant to G.S. 150B-40(e), ~~that statute governs the~~
5 ~~procedures before the administrative law judge. a "proposal for decision" shall be rendered within 45 days of the~~
6 ~~hearing pursuant to the rules of the Office of Administrative Hearings, 26 NCAC 3 .0026.~~

7 (b) ~~Within 10 days after the proposal for decision is served on the parties under G.S. 150B-40(e), a Any party may~~
8 ~~file and serve written exceptions to this "proposal proposal for decision decision" and submit their its own proposed~~
9 ~~findings of fact and conclusions of law. The exceptions and alternative proposals must be filed within ten days after~~
10 ~~the party has received the "proposal for decision" as drafted by the administrative law judge.~~

11 (b) ~~Any exceptions to the procedure during the hearing, the handling of the hearing by the administrative law judge,~~
12 ~~rulings on evidence, or any other matter~~ **The party shall explicitly state what exceptions are taken to the decision or**
13 **procedure and what relief the party seeks.** ~~Exceptions must be written and refer specifically to pages of the record or~~
14 ~~otherwise precisely identify the occurrence to which exception is taken. The exceptions must be filed with the Board~~
15 ~~within ten days of the receipt of the proposal for decision. The written exceptions should bear the notation:~~
16 ~~EXCEPTIONS TO THE PROCEEDINGS IN THE CASE OF (Name of case). the party takes exception. Each~~
17 ~~proposed finding of fact [should] shall refer [specifically] to pages of the record or otherwise [precisely] identify the~~
18 ~~evidence supporting the proposed finding, and each proposed conclusion of law must refer [specifically] to or~~
19 ~~otherwise [precisely] identify both the findings of fact and legal support for the proposed conclusion. A party may file~~
20 ~~and serve written arguments along with the exceptions and proposed findings of fact and conclusions of law.~~

21 (c) ~~Any A party may ask to present oral argument to the Board. Board upon request. The party must file and serve~~
22 ~~the request with the written submissions under Paragraph (b) of this Rule. The request must be included with the~~
23 ~~written exceptions.~~

24 (d) ~~Upon receipt of request for further If a party requests oral argument, notice will be issued promptly to all parties~~
25 ~~designating the Board will notice the time and place for such oral argument. The presiding officer may set the terms~~
26 ~~of oral argument, including order of argument and time limitations.~~

27 (d) ~~After the procedures set forth in this Section, the Board will issue a final agency decision in accordance with Rule~~
28 ~~.2015 of this Section.~~

29 (e) ~~Giving due consideration to the proposal for decision and the exceptions and arguments of the parties, the Board~~
30 ~~may adopt the proposal for decision or may modify it as the Board deems necessary. The decision rendered will be a~~
31 ~~part of the record and a copy thereof given to all parties. The decision as adopted or modified becomes the "final~~
32 ~~agency decision" for the right to judicial review. Said decision will be rendered by the Board within 60 days of the~~
33 ~~next regularly scheduled meeting following the oral arguments, if any. If there are no oral arguments presented, the~~
34 ~~decision will be rendered within 60 days of the next regularly scheduled Board meeting following filing of the written~~
35 ~~exceptions.~~

36
37 *History Note: Authority G.S. 90-85.6; 150B-11; 150B-38; 150B-40; 150B-41; 150B-42;*

1 *Eff. July 1, 1988;*
2 *Amended Eff. May 1, 1989;*
3 *Pursuant to G.S. 150B-21.3A, rule is necessary without substantive public interest Eff. October 3,*
4 *2017; 2017.*
5 *Amended Eff. August 1, 2020.*

21 NCAC 46 .2017 is adopted **with changes** as published in 34:18 NCR 1723 as follows:

21 NCAC 46 .2017 **REAPPLICATIONS, REINSTATEMENT, REHEARING, AND RECONSIDERATION**

(a) The following terms govern reapplication, reinstatement, **rehearing, rehearing** and other reconsideration requests from a final agency decision, unless otherwise expressly provided in that **final agency decision: {order:}**

- (1) No individual who holds a license, **registration, registration**, or other privilege from the Board who has that license, **registration, registration**, or other privilege either **{(a)}** revoked or **{(b)}** actively suspended indefinitely or for more than five years may petition for reinstatement, to have the revocation or suspended lifted, for reconsideration or **rehearing, rehearing**, or otherwise for modification or rescinding the order, until at least five years from the effective date of the revocation or suspension.
- (2) No individual who has had an application for a license, **registration, registration**, or other privilege from the Board denied may submit another application or petition for reconsideration or rehearing or otherwise for modification or rescinding the denial, until at least two years from the date of the most recent application that the Board denied. At that time, the individual must submit a new application for the Board to consider.
- (3) No permit holder who has had that permit either **{(a)}** revoked or **{(b)}** actively suspended indefinitely or for more than five years may submit another application or petition for reinstatement, to have the revocation or suspended lifted, for reconsideration or **rehearing, rehearing**, or otherwise for modification or rescinding the order, until at least five years from the effective date of the revocation or suspension.
- (4) No proposed permit holder who has had an application for a permit denied may submit another application for a permit or petition for reconsideration or rehearing or otherwise for modification or rescinding the denial, until at least two years from the date of the most recent application that was denied. At that time, the proposed permit holder must submit a new application for the Board to consider.
- (5) If any license, registration, **permit, permit**, or any other privilege is subject to a stayed suspension or an active suspension for a period of five years or shorter, the person holding that privilege may not submit another application, or petition for reinstatement, to have the suspension lifted, for reconsideration or **rehearing, rehearing**, or otherwise for modification or rescinding the order, before the conclusion of that suspension.
- (6) For the purposes of Subparagraphs (3), **{(4)} (4)**, and (5) of this Paragraph, the Board shall treat a permit holder or proposed permit holder the same as a prior permit holder or proposed permit holder if either of the following two conditions is true:

1 (a) the permit holder or proposed permit holder has the same pharmacy manager and there
2 is more than 10 percent common ownership as the prior permit holder or proposed permit
3 holder; or

4 (b) the permit holder or proposed permit holder has 50 percent or more common ownership
5 as the prior permit holder or proposed permit holder.

6 To determine common ownership under this Rule, the Board shall consider business entities to be
7 identical to other business entities if there is more than a 50 percent common ownership.
8 Furthermore, to determine common ownership under this Rule, the Board shall combine the interests
9 of individuals with the interests of any business entities in which the individuals have more than a
10 10 percent interest, as well as with the interests of individuals in the same family.

11 (b) The Board may alter the terms provided in Paragraph (a) of this Rule, after applying the facts and circumstances
12 of the matter and its application of the disciplinary provision in G.S. 90-85.38. Unless the Board expressly modifies
13 these terms in the final agency decision, the terms of Paragraph (a) of this Rule apply to that decision.

14 (c) If a person submits a petition or application that does not ~~[satisfy the limits]~~ meet the requirements set forth in this
15 Rule, the Executive Director shall not schedule any hearing on the petition or application before the Board until the
16 limits set forth in this Rule are satisfied.

17 (d) ~~[A person's ability to]~~ Upon a petition for reinstatement or to submit a new application permitted under this Rule,
18 ~~[Rule does not indicate that the Board will grant any such petition or application. The]~~ the Board will grant or reinstate
19 a license, registration, ~~[permit]~~ permit, or other privilege only after a finding that the grant or reinstatement is
20 appropriate under the Pharmacy Practice Act and ~~[its]~~ the Board's rules and regulations. In making that decision, the
21 Board will ~~[consider, among other things,]~~ consider the gravity of the misconduct that caused the denial. ~~[suspension]~~
22 suspension, or revocation; the applicant's history; the applicant's current ability to practice pharmacy with reasonable
23 skill, ~~[competence]~~ competence, and safety to the public; and the applicant's conduct since the order of denial,
24 ~~[suspension]~~ suspension, or revocation.

25
26 *History Note: Authority G.S. 90-85.6; 90-85.38; 150B-38; 150B-40; 150B-42;*

27 *Eff. August 1, 2020.*